
 

Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 12 November 2020 at 2.00 pm

IMPORTANT NOTICE:
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY AND CAN BE

VIEWED VIA: WWW.GLOUCESTERSHIRE.GOV.UK



    



    

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 12 November 2020

2.00 pm – 4:00 pm

REMOTE MEETING

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  

Joanne Bolton

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.

Questions can be asked on the day or sent to the Clerk before the
meeting. If you would like to ask a question on the day of the
meeting, please contact the Clerk Joanne Bolton (email:
joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk) (Tel: 01452 324197), by
10:00am on Tuesday 10 November 2020, so that arrangements
can be made as the meeting is being held remotely via video
conferencing.

The Chair will advise the timescale for any questions asked on the
day of the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the
meeting. A written answer will be provided if questions are received
3 clear working days before the date of the meeting.

Joanne Bolton

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2020 and note 
actions.

Joanne Bolton

5  UPDATE ON THE F40 AND COVID-19 (Pages 13 - 24) Philip Haslett

6  EARLY YEARS FUNDING (Pages 25 - 32) Sarah Hylton,
Suzanne Hall

7  HIGH NEEDS (Pages 33 - 50) Philip Haslett

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS



    

1. In the event of the Forum not being able to complete the meeting, the Forum will 
reconvene at 2:00 pm on Friday 13 November 2020.

2. Members of the public will be able to view the Schools Forum meeting via 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

3. The recorded meeting will be posted on the Gloucestershire County Council website as 
soon as possible following the meeting.

4. If you have any general queries about the meeting, please contact the Clerk: Joanne 
Bolton (email: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk) (Tel: 01452 324197).



1

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 17 September 2020

The meeting was held remotely.

Present:

David Alexander - Secondary Headteacher (Maintained)
Lyn Dance - Special School Head Teacher
Elisa Entwistle - Alternative Provision Schools
Peter Hales - Primary School Governors (Academy)
Andrew Harris - Community Representative (Chair of the Schools 

Forum)
Kirsten Harrison - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Kate Hawkins - Special School Governors
Amanda Horniman - Early Years Providers
Rachel Howie - Gloucester Diocese
Dan Johnson - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Gwyneth Keen - Early Years Providers
Becky Martin - Special School Governors (Maintained)
David Metcalf - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Sarah Murphy - Unions
Alexander Norman - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Clare Steel - Special School Headteachers
Stuart Wilson - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Observers: Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cabinet Member for Economy, Education 

and Skills

Officers: Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services 
Charlotte Jones, Acting Director of Education
Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development
Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Officer and Clerk to the
Schools Forum

Apologies: Matthew Bishop, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member for Children's Safeguarding 
and Early Years
Sara Byrne, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Penny Chislett, Post-16 Education

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

Will Morgan, Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Jacqui Phillips, Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Steve Savory, Primary School Headteachers (Academy)
Adam White, Secondary School Governors (Maintained)
Rob Wilcock, Secondary School Governors (Academy)

53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

54. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received.

55. MINUTES 

55.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 June 2020 were approved as a 
correct record.

55.2 Matters arising from the Schools Forum meeting held on 18 June 2020 – Early 
Years 

55.2.1 Having highlighted the challenges being faced by the early years sector at the June 
Forum meeting, Gwyneth Keen, Early Years representative gave a detailed account 
of the severe financial strain the early years sector was now under as a result of the 
widespread closure of settings during the Covid-19 pandemic.   She reported that 
many early years providers were indicating that they may be forced to close 
permanently as a result of the financial instability.

55.2.2 The Early Years representative also outlined how the economic and public health 
consequences of the crisis could deepen existing patterns of vulnerability and 
under-achievement for young children and families, especially those living in 
poverty and disadvantage.   She reported that early years were a crucial stage for 
social mobility, with the poorest children already 11 months behind their better-off 
peers before they started school, and that attending high-quality early years 
provision provided a vital opportunity to narrow this gap before children started 
school.

55.2.3 The Early Years representative made reference to the Covid-19 emergency fund for 
schools, and pointed out that there was no similar funding available for early years 
providers to claim for loss of income and additional costs incurred due to Covid-19.   
The Early Years representative questioned whether the Early Years block 
underspend could be used as an emergency fund to ensure the future sustainability 
of the sector in Gloucestershire. She stated that she had been asked by a cross 
section of the sector to formally raise this at the Forum meeting for urgent attention. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

55.2.4 Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner, explained that £1M of the Early Years 
underspend last year was distributed out to providers. It was not yet know whether 
there would be an underspend this financial year, as it would depend on the 
number and activities between the autumn and summer term, and the lag that the 
Schools Census would pick up in January 2021.  

55.2.5 Officers agreed to look into whether any underspend could be utilised to fund the 
infrastructure, or, given that the need had arisen as a consequence of the Covid-19 
pandemic, whether there was an alterative funding stream available.  It was agreed 
that officers would consult with the Early Years Forum on the options available, and 
that an item on Early Years funding would be included on the agenda of the next 
Forum meeting. 
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

56. SCHOOLS FORUM MEMBERSHIP 

56.1 In response to the queries raised on membership at the June Forum meeting, the 
Forum received a report which outlined the current membership structure of the 
Schools Forum, and the balance between maintained primary, maintained 
secondary and academies members in relation to the pupil numbers in each 
category. 

56.2 The Forum noted that the balance between maintained primary, maintained 
secondary, and academies members on the Schools Forum, remained broadly 
proportionate to the pupil numbers in each category.  No changes were proposed 
by the Local Authority to amend the number of members representing those 
categories on the Forum.

56.3 The Forum considered the request from the Gloucestershire Parent Carer Forum 
(GPCF) for one of its members to have a seat on the Schools Forum.   The Chair 
drew the Forum’s attention to the letter received from the Coordinator of GPCF 
which outlined that GPCF was a strategic partner of Gloucestershire County 
Council, and that its aims were to promote good practice, identify need and inform 
planning processes, and to ensure there were services to support all children with 
disabilities or special educational needs.  The Chair indicated that it would be very 
useful to gain the GPCF’s perspective in the Forum’s discussions.  The Forum 
subsequently approved the request; a representative of the GPCF would therefore 
become a non-schools member of the School Forum.  
ACTION: Clerk to the Schools Forum

56.4 It was acknowledged that the induction of the GPCF’s representative to the Schools 
Forum, would include guidance around taking a strategic view across the whole of 
the education estate whilst acting as a representative of the group that nominated 
them.

57. SCHOOL FUNDING 2021/22 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

57.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, gave a presentation 
on the implications of the government indicative announcements on school funding 
for 2021/22, and the proposed funding formula method to use for Gloucestershire 
schools and academies.  (For Information: A copy of the presentation slides 
covering each agenda item has been uploaded to the Council’s website.)

57.2 The Forum noted the 2021/22 indicative Dedicated Schools Grant block summary 
(the Early Years block indicative figures for 2021/22 had not yet been released).   It 
was reported that at the January 2021 Forum meeting there would be clarity on 
whether there would  likely be any surplus in the Schools block; the Forum would 
then need to decide on how any surplus could be best utilised.

57.3 The Head of Education Strategy and Development presented the changes and 
clarifications to the National Funding Formula (NFF) for 2021/22, as detailed in the 
report.  The Forum noted that:
 Teacher Pay and Pension Grants were now included in the NFF in 2021/22- 

£180 per primary pupil and £265 per secondary pupil.  They would therefore 
be in the schools’ core budgets rather than paid as separate grants.

 Minimum Per Pupil Funding had increased to £5,150 per secondary pupil and 
£4,000 per primary pupil, and then further increased by the teacher pay and 
pension grants to £5,415 secondary and £4,180 primary.

 The Sparsity Factor for small and remote schools had increased nationally by 
over 60%. A total of 30 primary schools and 4 secondary schools received the 
sparsity factor funding - 9 qualifying primary schools below 70 pupils on roll 
would receive the full increase of £19k, and all qualifying primary schools 
below 110 pupils on roll would see an increase of at least £10,000 (the 
average being £14,781).  The 4 secondary schools would receive increases 
between £2,681 and £7,137. 

 The Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) had been updated 
from 2015 to 2019 data and adjusted the way that they are assigned – using 
rank rather than score. Allocations in the DfE’s 2021/22 indicative school 
figures had been updated to include the revised count method.

 The Split Site Factor has been uplifted by 3.01% for the per pupil amount and 
2.97% for the lump sum amount.

 An additional funding floor protection was included in the formula to ensure 
that each school was allocated at least 2% more per pupil funding when 
compared to the previous year’s formula allocations - 31% of schools (86 
primary and 4 secondary) would be allocated additional funding due to the 
funding floor.

57.4 In response to a question, Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and 
Capital, clarified that the additional funding floor protection of at least 2%, would be 
allocated to schools on a per pupil basis.  A reduction in the numbers of pupils at a 
school would mean that the school would lose the funding connected to those pupil 
numbers.  He explained that the Minimum Funding Guarantee of 1.84% per pupil in 
the 2020/21 formula was the equivalent of the funding floor protection of 2% per 
pupil in the 2021/22 formula.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

57.5 Having considered the NFF factor rates as outlined in the report, the Forum agreed 
that the basis on which the formula would be allocated for 2021/22, would match 
the NFF method as closely as possible. 

57.6 The Head of Education Strategy and Development, explained that on current 
information expectations were that the growth fund needed for 2021/22 was £1.5M 
to cover growth in basic need places and start up costs for new schools.   In 
response to a question, the Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital, 
reported that the amount needed for growth varied each year depending on the 
type of schools and places needed.  It had been forecast that the same figure as 
2020/21 of £1.5M would be needed in 2021/22. The growth fund in 2021/22 
includes the start up costs of two new schools.

57.7 The Forum agreed a top-slice for growth of £1.5M for 2021/22, subject to being 
updated for any change in the basic need Age Weighted Pupil Unit rates for 
2021/22 when those were finalised in January 2021. 

57.8 The Forum considered the proposals for de-delegations. Sarah Murphy, Trade 
Union representative, accompanied by Tony Chong, NASUWT, presented the 
report on Local Authority Teaching Union Facilities 2020.  She emphasised the 
importance of the de-delegation provision for union facilities, explaining that it 
allowed all primary local authority maintained schools to meet all statutory and 
procedural entitlements to union representation.  The Trade Union representative 
drew the Forum’s attention to Annex B of her report which summarised how the 
facilities time was spent in 2019/20 by NEU and NASUWT.  She explained that 
without this service schools would individually be responsible for meeting all 
statutory obligations from their own budget, and she referred to the implications of 
not buying the service as outlined in her report.  She concluded her presentation by 
stating that she strongly hoped that the Forum members eligible to vote would 
approve the ongoing de-delegation of union facilities for primary schools.  Tony 
Chong emphasised how vital the service was in supporting the requirements and 
needs of colleagues, particularly during the Covid-19 pandemic.  He stated that 
feedback received on their work from colleague members, as well as headteachers 
and deputies, had always been very positive. 

57.9 The Forum’s maintained schools’ representatives present at the meeting (by sector) 
agreed de-delegation at the per pupil rates shown in the report for:  In-year 
increases in pupil numbers – primary; Targeted intervention – primary; Union 
facilities – primary; Local authorities’ duties (primary and secondary).

57.10 The Forum was informed that the government had announced a £1 billion Covid-19 
catch-up package which was on top of the £14.4 billion 3 year settlement.  The first 
part was a one-off Universal Catch-up Premium (£650M nationally), which would be 
paid across 3 terms in the next academic year, based on £80 per pupil for 
mainstream, and £240 per place for specialist provision.  The second part to be 
allocated in the 2020/21 autumn term was a £350M Tutoring Fund, involving 
subsidised tuition programmes; academic mentors for the most disadvantaged 
schools; a reception and early language programme; and £96M for colleges and 6th 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

forms.  The Head of Education Strategy and Development emphasised the 
importance of all schools being made aware of the Tutoring Fund and how to make 
a claim. It was reported that whilst there had been no guidance as yet from the DfE 
on how this would be evaluated and monitored, schools would be advised to keep 
an oversight of how this additional funding was being used and the impact it had 
had.

57.11 The Forum was informed that the total amount of Covid-19 exceptional costs 
successfully claimed by maintained schools was £441,059, with the primary sector 
claiming the biggest share (63.7% = £281,145). Funds claimed for increase in 
premises costs represented the biggest share of the claim (45.5% = £200,901) 
closely followed by the support for Free School Meals (42.65% = £187,700). 
Officers explained that whilst the Covid-19 fund claiming period had now closed for 
2020, schools were still advised to track their exceptional costs incurred due to 
Covid-19.  The local authority would then be able to determine the overall amount 
of exceptional costs to schools in Gloucestershire, and be in a position to make an 
informed claim for any government funding which may become available.  

57.12 Lyn Dance, Special School Headteacher representative, reported that as special 
schools were required to remain open during the Covid-19 pandemic, their key 
concern was the additional cost of using supply teachers to cover staff absences.

57.13 The Forum advised officers that if another band of Covid-19 funding for exceptional 
costs became available to schools in 2021, then the Local Authority would need to 
provide advice and clarification to schools on whether those, that had accumulated 
an historic surplus, and that expected to increase that surplus, were eligible to 
make a claim if they were able to demonstrate that the surplus was earmarked for a 
future project.

57.14 The Forum acknowledged that it would make its final recommendations on the 
funding formula at its meeting on 14 January 2021, ahead of the submission of the 
final formula to the DfE.

58. HIGH NEEDS 

58.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, gave a presentation 
on the High Needs budget. He reminded members that at the June Forum meeting 
it was forecast that the High Needs budget in 2020/21 would overspend by 
£5,449.200 against the High Needs funding allocation of £67,253,100.  He 
explained that the August forecast was currently showing a £306,700 reduction in 
expenditure compared to budget.  A significant element of this was due to reduced 
costs of Alternative Provision as a consequence of no permanent exclusions during 
the summer term when schools were closed to the majority of children.

58.2 He emphasised the importance of accurate budget forecasting.  He indicated that 
whilst the budget was currently showing a reduction in expenditure compared to 
budget, this should be treated with a degree of caution, as there would likely be an 
increase in expenditure in September/October as pupils returned to school.  

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

7 

However, the current indications were that the expenditure would align closely to 
the planned deficit budget. This demonstrated a good understanding of the trends, 
enabling accurate forecasting, and the development of strategies to address those 
key drivers of the overspend. 

58.3 It was reported that the key driver of the overspend was the number of Education 
Health and Care Plans (EHCPs), that had continued to rise as forecast.  Whilst 
there was an initial slowing of applications and the process during the early stages 
of the Covid-19 pandemic, assessments had continued to be received and there 
were currently 253 open assessments in progress.  Officers advised the Forum that 
those levels were exceptionally higher than forecast and there could be a future 
impact on the forecast for both special school and independent special school 
budgets.  

58.4 There were indications that there could be a marked increase in need concerning 
children with Social Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) needs in primary 
schools, as primary headteachers were reporting that those children in particular 
were struggling to settle back into school.  Consequently, it was suggested that in 
the near future, consideration may need to be given to increasing the number of 
special school places for primary age children with SEMH needs.

58.5 The Head of Education Strategy and Development acknowledged that the full 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic was not yet know, and he confirmed that trends 
would be monitored carefully over the next few months.  He explained that the aim 
was to avoid increasing the number of EHCPs in the system to address what would 
hopefully be a short-term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.  Other more effective 
and timely solutions would be looked at to support children transitioning back to 
school, rather than locking into long-term statutory plans.
 

58.6 The Head of Education Strategy and Development informed the Forum that an 
additional £7.515M of High Needs funding for 2021/22 was broadly in line with the 
additional funding received for the 2020/21 budget, and this did provide confidence 
of a similar uplift in 2022/23. He explained that just over £1M of the increase in 
funding was to replace the Teachers Pay and Pension grants, which were now part 
of the Dedicated Schools Grant allocation. He indicated that he was confident that 
with the continued rise in funding and the expected savings from the High Needs 
programme this would go a long way towards achieving a balanced in-year budget.  
He emphasised however, that if the level of need continued to rise in line with the 
trends over the last three years, it would still not be enough to bring the budget to 
an in-year balance.

58.7 The Forum acknowledged that in order to further address the challenges, other 
areas of the High Needs budget would need to be considered within which further 
savings could be made.  The Head of Education and Strategy explained that the 
following three areas had been identified where savings could potentially be made: 
An adjustment to the diseconomy of scale model of funding available to special 
schools; a reduction in High Needs expenditure on the ‘1 in 40’ model to support 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

8 

schools with high numbers of EHCPs; and a reduction in direct expenditure on the 
Advisory Teacher Service.

58.8 He reported  that in regards to the diseconomy of scale model, responses received 
following  contact with the South West Local Authority network, to gain an 
understanding of models that they used to support smaller special schools, had 
indicated that they did not provide additional funding in that way.  Whilst he 
recognised the need to support smaller schools, a review and consultation was 
needed on the existing model to ensure that it was operating as intended.

58.9 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that the ‘1 in 40’ 
model was currently in operation to support schools with high levels of EHCPs to 
address the lack of a ‘needs-led’ NFF.  He advised that consideration was needed 
on finding a more effective funding model within the confines of the current funding 
formula, for schools which had a large proportion of pupils with additional needs.  

58.10 A member raised the point that when the formula moved from the ‘1 in 75’ model  to 
the ‘1 in 40’ model, schools were not fully aware of the significant financial 
implications this would have on their budget.  For secondary schools that had a 
high proportion of children with additional needs, the detrimental impact on their 
budget was significant. The Forum urged officers to ensure that consultation on any 
change to the current model, clearly laid out how any subsequent financial impact 
would be addressed to ensure there was still fairness contained within the funding 
allocation to schools that had a disproportionate number of children with EHCPs.  It 
was suggested that this should include looking at how to ensure schools were 
provided with funding to match the true cost of supporting a pupil with an EHCP.  
The Head of Education and Strategy acknowledged that a better way forward was 
needed to ultimately develop a more efficient model.

58.11 The Forum was informed that the Advisory Teaching Service was currently fully 
funded from the High Needs block; the costs had been steadily rising over recent 
years, due to an increase in staff numbers to support the rising level of need in the 
system.  The intention was to explore and consult on options to reduce the cost of 
the service whilst protecting the quality and scope of the offer.  This could include 
options to move elements of the service to a traded offer.  Some members 
expressed concern that if the Advisory Teaching Service became a traded service 
then schools may not buy-in to that service.   

58.12 In response to a question, it was confirmed that the Advisory Teaching Service 
came under the ‘LA Services and staffing’ element of the High Needs block.  The 
overall budget for that element of the High Needs block was £3.9M - the Advisory 
Teaching Service expenditure was £1.9M.

58.13 The Forum agreed that all three areas should be considered as part of the exercise 
to look into whether potential savings could be made, and where a wider 
consultation with the school system would be valuable. The Forum would receive 
further detail on how the potential savings in those three areas could be achieved at 
its next meeting.

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

9 

ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

58.14 At this juncture, the Chair was advised that the meeting was no longer quorate.  It 
was agreed that as the next two items on the agenda were for information purposes 
only, and did not require a decision, the meeting would continue.   

59. EDUCATION CAPITAL 

59.1 Gareth Vine, Universal Commissioning Manger, introduced the report on the annual 
budget for the 2020/21 Children and Families Capital programme.  

59.2 He explained that the overall budget for the programme was £132.355M.  The 
capital schemes were forecast to spend approximately £23.164M in 2020/21. The 
financial year spend as at the end of August was £3.923M.  It was reported that the 
Covid-19 pandemic had not had a significant impact on the delivery of any of the 
schemes.  The situation was being closely monitored to ascertain whether there 
would be a greater impact on delivery during the winter months when there may be 
a second spike in Covid-19 cases, and to also keep under review any potential 
impact on delivery due to Brexit.

59.3 An update was provided on the following current and future education capital 
projects across the county:

 Basic Need
 Additional Special Schools Places
 Alternative Provision
 New Social Emotional Mental Health Special School
 Cheltenham Secondary School
 New Free School Bids.

59.4 Members noted the approved Children and Families Capital programme 2020/21 as 
outlined in the report.

60. F40 

60.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, informed members 
that he had attended a meeting of the f40 Executive Committee on 16 September 
2020.   He reported that the f40 was making the case in a number of areas to lobby 
for additional support and funding for schools to cover the additional, unexpected 
costs as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.  He made reference to the letter 
attached at Annex C to the School Funding report, from the f40 to DfE, which set 
out the concerns raised by its members on the impact Covid-19 was having on 
school and education funding, and suggestions on how they believed those could 
be dealt with.

60.2 It was reported that the local authority was seeking feedback from schools to gain 
an understanding of their key concerns regarding the on-going exceptional costs; 
this information would then be conveyed to the f40 to inform its campaign.  

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

10 

Chair

Meeting concluded at 4.06 pm

Page 10



 

Schools Forum Meeting on 17 September 2020 
 

Action Sheet 
 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

Matters arising from 
the Schools Forum 
meeting held on 18 
June 2020 – Early 
Years 

Officers to look into whether any underspend in the 
Early Years Block could be utilised to fund the 
infrastructure, or, given that the need had arisen as a 
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, whether 
there was an alterative funding stream available.  
Officers to consult with the Early Years Forum on the 
options available. 
 
An item on Early Years funding to be included on the 
agenda of the next Forum meeting.  
 

Phil Haslett Report and recommendations included in 
the Early Years report. 

Schools Forum 
Membership 

A member of the Gloucestershire Parent Carer Forum 
to become a non-schools member of the Schools 
Forum. 

Jo Bolton Coordinator for GPCF has been asked to 
nominate member/substitute. 
 
The Schools Forum Constitution updated 
to reflect change to the membership 
structure. 
 
New member induction session to be 
arranged. 

High Needs At the next meeting the Forum to receive further detail 
on how potential savings could be made in the 
following three key areas:  An adjustment to the 
diseconomy of scale model of funding available to 
special schools; a reduction in High Needs 
expenditure on the ‘1 in 40’ model to support schools 
with high numbers of EHCPs; and a reduction in 

Phil Haslett Verbal update to be provided at the 
meeting. 

P
age 11



direct expenditure on the Advisory Teacher Service. 
  

 

P
age 12



 

COVID-19 Report  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

12th  November 2020 

Type of Decision For information and discussion 

Background 
Documents 

Not applicable 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Purpose of Report To provide an update on funding and support available to the school 

system during the COVID-19 Pandemic 

Key 
Recommendations 

Forum members are asked to consider the current impact of the COVID 

crisis on school, the support that has been provided locally and nationally 

and whether there is further action we should be taking. 

Resource 
Implications 

Use of general COVID funding provide to the local authority - £500k 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



1. Introduction 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update the Schools Forum on impact of COVID-19 

pandemic and the support that is available to the education system. It is also intended to 

promote discussion and feedback from the forum on the current financial pressures in the 

system. 

2. Exceptional costs 

2.1. In the summer 2020, the government committed to support schools with the exceptional 

costs associated to the first phase of the pandemic. Submissions were made to the DfE by 

the end of July 2020 against three criteria: 

 increased premises related costs (including utilities and resources needed to keep 

the school open, such as hygiene services) associated with keeping schools open 

during the Easter and/or summer half term holidays, for vulnerable children and the 

children of critical workers, over and above the costs that schools would have faced 

in other circumstances 

 support for free school meals for eligible children who are not attending 

school, where those costs are not covered by the national voucher scheme - this 

covers:  

 costs to schools arising before the introduction of the national voucher scheme 
 costs where schools are providing free meals to children for whom the national 

voucher scheme is inappropriate (for example, because there are no 

participating supermarkets locally or schools are providing meals directly) - 

schools can only claim through this fund for free school meals provided over 

Easter and summer half term holidays where it was required because local 

supermarkets were not yet part of the national scheme 

 additional cleaning – required due to confirmed or suspected coronavirus (COVID-

19) cases, in line with COVID-19: cleaning of non-healthcare settings, over and 

above the cost of existing cleaning arrangements 

2.2. We reported the initial outcomes from these claims for maintained school at the September 

schools forum, £441,059 split by sector: 

Sector Amount successfully claimed % 

Primary £281,145 63.7% 

Secondary £111,922 25.4% 

Special £19,619 4.4% 

Alternative Provision £28,373 6.4% 

Total £441,059 100.0% 

 

Page 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-free-school-meals-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-settings


2.3. These were the initial outcomes, as it was only for those schools that had submitted claims 

that fell within the constraints of the guidance.  The Education Skills Funding Agency 

(ESFA) is still reviewing claims that fell outside the guidance.  These are being done 

individually, which of course takes time, so we are expecting the results imminently. 

2.4. To date the ESFA and DFE have made it clear that they do not expect there to be a further 

round of funding to support exceptional costs.  However, this decision has caused concern 

for school leaders, local authorities, unions and education funding groups (F40 etc).  As 

such we have asked schools to continue to monitor and share the details of their ongoing 

COVID exceptional costs. 

2.5. To date we have received 50 responses from schools the details of which are laid out in the 

table below.   

 Cleaning Premises 

related 

costs 

Free 

School 

Meals 

Supply Other Total  

Primary 42,059 31,801 170 49,815 22,747 146,592 

Secondary 34,610 124,095 11,873 45,797 11,786 228,160 

Special 2,095 432 0 7,800 41 10,367 

AP 0 0 0 0 0 0 

       

 78,763 156,328 12,043 103,411 34,573 385,119 

 20% 41% 3% 27% 9%  

 

2.6. This is a small sample that covers costs during term 1, but helps to provide a picture of the 

pressures that schools budgets are currently facing.  We would expect these pressures to 

rise during term 2 as the tightened national restrictions start.   

2.7. We are aiming to build a complete picture and would ask Schools Forum members to 

encourage their colleagues to submit details to our finance team.  This evidence of 

increased costs will be an essential component for us to engage with the DfE and ESFA 

regarding a further round of exceptional cost funding. 

3. COVID 19 Catch Up Premium 

3.1. We reported on the National COVID catch-up premium at the September Schools Forum 

meeting, but have included the details again below, as a reminder for schools, as to what is 

currently available.   

3.2. The government has announced a £1 billion COVID catch-up package which is on top of 

the £14.4 billion 3 year settlement. The funding is in 2 parts: 

1) A one-off universal £650 million catch-up premium (Link) 

Page 15

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-catch-up-premium


This is to ensure that schools have the support they need to help all pupils make up for 

lost teaching time. 

 
Schools’ allocations from the £650m will be paid across 3 terms in the next academic 

based on: 

 £80 for each mainstream school pupil in reception through to year 11. 

 £240 for each place in a special, alternative provision or hospital school.  
 

This means a typical primary school of 200 pupils will receive £16,000 while a typical 

secondary school of 1,000 pupils will receive £80,000 to tackle the impact of lost teaching 

time on pupils as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. 

Schools have the flexibility to spend their funding in the best way for their cohort and 

circumstances, but are recommended to do this in line with the guidance (link) available 

from the Education Endowment Foundation. 

 2) A £350m tutoring fund 

From the second half of the 2020/21 autumn term this will provide support to 

disadvantaged pupils aged 5-16 in two ways:  

 Access to heavily subsidised tuition from organisations on a list of approved 
partners. 

 Support to the most disadvantaged schools to employ in-house academic mentors 
to provide intensive support to pupils. 

 
A reception year early language programme will also be available that will make training 

and resources available at no-cost to schools where additional targeted support for oral 

language would be particularly beneficial. 

£96M of the tutoring fund will be used to support colleges, sixth forms and all 16-19 

providers, to provide small group tutoring activity for disadvantaged 16-19 students whose 

studies have been disrupted. 

4. Local activity and support 

4.1. Alongside the national support we have ring-fenced local COVID funding to support the 

implementation of a number of local programmes to support children and young people, 

families and schools through the COIVD pandemic.  There are two programmes running 

through the education team.  

4.2. The first piece of work, ‘Transition Chat’, was initiated in the summer and is delivered by 

Young Gloucestershire.  It is focussed on supporting year 11 students that are at risk of 

becoming Not in Employment Education or Training (NEET).  Mode details about the 

programme can be found here.  

4.3. The programme was available to up to 100 year 11 students that were at risk of 

becoming NEET. Take up has been very good and is show below.  

Page 16

https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/covid-19-resources/covid-19-support-guide-for-schools/#nav-covid-19-support-guide-for-schools1
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-catch-up-premium?utm_source=af34d495-1dbc-438b-abca-27fe291a2c68&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=weekly#neli
https://www.youngglos.org.uk/school-community/transitions/yr-11-transition-chat#:~:text=Young%20Gloucestershire%20is%20here%20to%20help%20year%2011%27s,providing%20advice%20and%20guidance%20about%20their%20next%20steps.


 

 

4.4. Engagement has also been positive, with 73% of the students referred on to the 

programme engaging well and having clear plans in place.  There are 13 students, who 

through a range of challenging personal circumstances, we are continuing to work to find 

solutions for.   

4.5. COVID is going to continue to impact, possibly even more so, on this current Year 11.  So 

we will run a similar programme for this academic year and could potentially start much 

earlier improving the chance of success. 

4.6. The second area of focus has been on how we provide support children and young people 

that, on return to school, are struggling to access education and are at risk of exclusion.  

There is concern amongst professionals, locally and nationally, that the extended period of 

time out of school and the trauma associated with the pandemic, will have had a significant 

impact and increase the number of children vulnerable to exclusion.   

4.7. The response to this is the Team Around the Locality Cluster (TALC).  This is a multi-

agency model that builds on the successful Team Around the School.  The aim of the TALC 

is to ensure that there is an effective multiagency forum for schools to refer children and 

young people that they are concerned about and to get a solution in place. More details 

about the programme can be found here. 

4.8. There have been 8 referrals so far and the first multi-agency groups met very recently (start 

of term 2) a verbal update will be provided at the Schools Forum meeting on the support 

and funding that has been agreed.   

Forum members are asked to consider the current impact of the COVID crisis on school, 

the support that has been provided locally and nationally and whether there is further 

action we should be taking. 

5. The F40 

5.1. The F40 remain actively engaged with the DfE and central government around the funding 

pressures on the school system.  Attached with the papers is the latest letter to the DfE 

focussed on COVID related funding pressures. This has been followed up by a meeting the 

DfE funding team to discuss the issues in detail.  

 

Page 17

https://www.glosfamiliesdirectory.org.uk/kb5/gloucs/glosfamilies/family.page?familychannel=3_2_10#:~:text=%20The%20Team%20Around%20the%20Locality%20Cluster%20model,units%20by%20providing%20access%20to%20specialist...%20More%20


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 
 
October 20, 2020 
 
Continuing impact of Covid-19 on school and education funding 
 
Dear Mr Foot/Mr Goldman  
 
I hope you and your colleagues at the Department for Education continue to be well through 
these difficult times. 
 
Since I last wrote to you in August, the f40 group has been in dialogue with our members, both 
from local authorities and schools, about the continuing impact of Covid-19. 
 
While f40 would very much welcome an opportunity to meet with you remotely later in autumn, 
we felt it would be useful to share now some of the feedback we have received. 
 
We appreciate you are under increased pressure, but feel a grassroots perspective is of benefit. 
 
f40 believes the impact on schools should be continually monitored, and the criteria for claiming 
back extra expenses regularly reviewed. 
 
While we welcomed the additional funding announced for schools last year, much of it is being 
swallowed up by the increases to teachers’ pay and pensions, and now Covid-19.  
 
In real terms, schools are much worse off than they were five years ago and simply cannot meet 
the additional demands placed on them now due to the pandemic.  
 

1. Additional teaching costs 
 

Since schools returned in September, one of the greatest challenges for headteachers has been 
ensuring that their schools have sufficient teaching staff in place every day. 
 
As the number of Covid cases rises, more and more teachers are having to isolate if they have 
possible symptoms, or if they have been in contact with someone who has tested positive.  
 
Some teachers are also having to stay home to look after their own children who are isolating. 
 
The impact on schools is enormous.   
 
The squeeze on education budgets in recent years has led many schools to reduce the number 
of teaching staff to the bare minimum. That means they now have no spare capacity when 
teachers are absent.    
 
During the pandemic, schools are having to increasingly rely on supply teachers to provide 
cover. This is exacerbated when Covid tests are not quickly or locally available. 
 
If teachers could be tested immediately, those that receive a negative result could return to the 
classroom, rather than having to spend unnecessary time away from school. 
 
Such is the extent of the issue, many schools have already spent their annual supply teaching 
budget. As time goes on and costs continue to be incurred, schools are having to consider the 

Page 19



2 
 

trade-off between opening in full and the threat that may pose to the future financial sustainability 
of the school. 
 
A number of headteachers have considered using their school budgets to buy testing kits 
themselves – in order to get teachers with a negative result back in the classroom quickly. They 
were eager to know whether it would be an appropriate use of budget, claiming it was the only 
way they could keep costs down and schools open during particularly trying times. 
 
We do not believe schools should have to use their teaching budget to pay for Covid tests but 
agree with them that it would be a better use of their budget if it saved them substantial sums on 
supply teachers. 
 
Suggestion: f40 believes Government should pay the additional staffing costs of schools, where 
they have arisen due to the pandemic. 
 
Suggestion: Priority should be given to schools and teachers during the testing process, similar 
to that given to health care workers, to ensure teachers can return to the classroom at the 
earliest opportunity.  
 
Suggestion: Additional testing kits should be supplied to schools on a rolling programme. 
 

2. Additional teaching resources 
 

Schools, particularly primary schools, are having to spend more on teaching resources. 
 
Social distancing measures mean children can no longer sit together and share learning 
resources and equipment, as in the past. This is a direct additional cost to schools caused by the 
pandemic. 
 
Suggestion: Schools be allowed to claim back extra costs for learning resources brought about 
by Covid-19. 
 

3. Extraordinary additional costs 
 

The current guidelines around reclaiming additional expenses have been in place since the 
spring, and we believe they are now too narrow for the current situation. The range and breadth 
of additional costs for schools is constantly expanding as they navigate their way through the 
pandemic. 
 
Schools need ongoing assistance with generic extra costs, such as deep cleaning and the 
displaying of information signs, however, a range of additional ‘other’ costs are also emerging. 
 
While we encourage schools to make savings where they can, we believe no school should be 
worse off because of Covid-19.  
 
Some schools may also have unique costs to them, which we believe should be included in the 
criteria for claiming back expenses.  
 
For example, special educational needs schools are spending substantial sums on PPE, such as 
aprons, masks, and gloves. This is considered essential as some children with additional needs 
are prone to spitting, biting, and licking, increasing risk of infection, but it is costly. 
 
Examples of emerging additional extra costs include: 
 

 Additional water usage due to extra hand washing 

 More frequent emptying of cesspits due to the increase in water usage 

 PPE 

 Remote learning platforms 

Page 20



3 
 

 Extra toilet blocks 

 Additional lunch/dining room equipment to aid social distancing (trays, cutlery, crockery) 
 
Suggestion: f40 believes allowance should be made for schools to recoup ‘other’ extra 
expenses that are not already included on the claims form, and which may be specific to their 
situation. At the end of the financial year(s), it should become clear if they need to pay back 
funds.  
 

4. Winter costs 
 

Schools are expecting their heating costs to rise this winter as a direct result of the pandemic. 
 
In order to reduce the risk of Covid infections passing between pupils and teachers, schools have 
been advised to keep buildings well ventilated by keeping windows open wherever possible. 
 
This hasn’t posed a problem during the warmer months, but now autumn is here, schools are 
having to use their heating systems more frequently, and increase the temperature, to 
compensate for the open windows. 
 
Suggestion: Schools should be allowed to claim for additional heating costs by submitting this 
year’s heating bill along with a comparative bill from the same period last year.  
 

5. Loss of income 
 
Many schools are facing financial hardship because their income streams continue to be frozen. 
These could be after school clubs, or the hiring out of sports and community facilities.  
 
In many cases, while the income is no longer coming in, the costs associated with them, such as 
staff and leasing costs, are continuing.   
 
Some schools have had no choice but to wind up certain activities, which is a loss to their 
community and has also incurred associated redundancy costs. 
 
Suggestion: We believe the DfE should support schools who have lost income by agreeing to 
subsidise a percentage of it – for example, funding 75% of lost income. This would be in line with 
the approach taken with local authorities. 
 

6. Extra learning support 
 

Many local authorities are reporting a sharp spike in EHCP applications since September. 
    
f40 does not believe EHCPs are the right solution for all children and should only be used when 
long-term special educational needs are identified.  
 
We feel they should not be applied to children who have fallen behind due to coronavirus, or who 
have anxieties relating to the pandemic.  
 
However, greater funding for early intervention programmes should be available to restore 
emotional well-being and provide additional support to children who need it due to the impact of 
Covid.  
 
While the catch-up grant goes somewhere towards this, it will not be sufficient to meet the 
demand of every school. Also, schools may have to use the catch-up grant to ease wider funding 
pressures, rather than targeting it at specific pupil need. 
 
By putting additional funding into learning support now, Government will save money in the long-
term on EHCPs and special educational needs. 
    

Page 21



4 
 

Local authorities can play a key role in bringing together large numbers of schools, along with 
other key services, such as social care.  
 
Suggestion: Additional early intervention funding, over and above the £1bn catch-up grant,  
should be provided to ensure additional emotional well-being and learning support can be 
provided – reducing the likelihood of children needing EHCPs and to help children progress. 
 

7. School transport 
 

Local authorities and schools welcomed the additional funding to assist with school transport in 
September and have done incredibly well to ensure children get to and from school according to 
the new safety measures. 
 
While we welcome the new injection of funds for school transport announced last week, £27m, 
we fear this will not be enough to meet demand, especially in large rural counties. 
 
For example, in Devon we had a shortfall in extra school transport costs of £100,000 between 
the start of September and the October half-term. That is additional spending that Devon County 
Council cannot afford.  
 
We need a commitment to fund the extra school transport required until the Covid restrictions 
end – whenever that might be. 
 
Suggestion: f40 believes Government should make a long-term commitment to fund all 
additional extra school transport costs brought about by the pandemic until social distancing 
measures and restrictions are removed. 
 

8. School census 
 

The school census is taking place this month and concerns have been raised around the 
accuracy of the census in relation to the funding requirements of each school next year. 
 
In recent weeks there has been a noticeable rise in Elective Home Education (EHE), with one 
council claiming a 500% rise in applications, from 70 during this period last year to 350 now. 
 
We believe this is a direct result of the pandemic. 
 
Children who are being educated at home will not be included in the school census, and thus not 
included in school budget forecasts for next year. 
 
However, a large number of these children may return to the school system later this academic 
year – creating a funding shortage for their schools. 
 
When these children return, they may also require greater learning support and may qualify for 
Free School Meals, yet their school will not receive funding to cover either purely because they 
missed the census. 
 
Suggestion: f40 believes the Department for Education should prepare for discrepancies in the 
census due to the high number of children taken out of schools due to Elective Home Education. 
We believe schools should be paid an additional sum to cater for the likelihood of children being 
brought back into the system next year, and to enable them to provide extra learning support 
where needed. 
 

9. SEND 
 

Special Educational Needs continues to be a major concern for f40, with the needs of pupils 
outstripping available budgets, and EHCP applications continuing to rise.         
 

Page 22



5 
 

The situation is only going to get worse unless the High Needs system is overhauled, with less 
reliance on EHCPs and greater emphasis on school inclusion. 
 
Many councils have growing deficit SEND budgets and these will continue to increase unless 
action is taken now to deal with the High Needs crisis.  
 
We urge Government to resume its review of SEND as soon as possible, and report back with 
recommendations at the earliest opportunity.  
 
Schools need support systems, guidance and additional funding to enable them to be flexible in 
the way they work, which can enable them to be properly inclusive of pupils with SEND. 
 
And local authorities need additional funding to settle the huge deficit budgets they currently 
have, which is running close to £20m in some councils. 
 
Suggestion: The review into SEND be resumed as soon as possible. 
 
Suggestion: The SEND system be overhauled, with less reliance on EHCPs and greater 
emphasis on inclusion at mainstream schools. Schools should be given greater funding, 
guidance and support in order to provide the right level of care and education to pupils with High 
Needs. 
 
Suggestion: Local authorities should be given additional funding to pay off the deficit SEND 
budgets they have accrued. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Once again, thank you for taking the time to read some of the feedback we have received from 
our members.  
 
If you would like to discuss it in more detail, don’t hesitate to contact me, or f40 Secretary Karen 
Westcott, and we will be happy to arrange something. 
 
 
Kind regards 
 
 
 
 
James McInnes 
Chairman 
f40 
07961 275814 
 
cc. Karen Westcott 
07545 210067 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Early Years Report 
 

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

12th November 2020 

Type of Decision For decision re EY DSG funding 

Background 
Documents 

 

Authors Sarah Hylton, Early Years Service Manager 

Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

 

Purpose of Report Forum members are asked to consider and feedback on recommendations 

in relation to: 

 The use of the carried forward Early Years underspend to support 

sufficiency following the increased risks on the EY provider market due 

to the impact of Covid 19. 

 

Key 
Recommendations 

 

Forum members are asked to approve the recommendation that the Early 

Years carry forward balance  of £1.169 million is used as follows: 

 

 Allocate £400,000 to support sufficiency of childcare provision  in 
areas where settings at risk of closure impact on childcare 
sufficiency.(strategy outlined below) 

 Retain £200,000 of the underspend to provide contingency should 
any unforeseen costs arise. 

 Allocate £560,000  to the remaining providers based on the full 
academic year hours and adjust for deprivation factors (as last 
year) 
 

 
 

 

Resource 
Implications 

The Early Years block is one of the four blocks which make up the ring-
fenced Dedicated Schools Grant. At the Schools Forum meeting in June 
20 it was agreed that the Early Years year end balances of £1.57 million 
should be retained within Early Years to meet pressures within that sector. 
 Unallocated balances after adjusting for transfers to the disability access 
fund, projects agreed by the Schools Forum in June 2019 and year end 
adjustments for differences between forecasts and actuals, total £1.16 
million. This paper sets out the use of these balances.’ 
 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Early Years block funding is calculated using the 

numbers from the claims submitted in the January census multiplied by a nationally set 

rate hourly rate which currently for 2019/20 in Gloucestershire is £4.38 for three and four 

year olds and £5.36 for two year olds.  The January census 2020 is used to fund the 

autumn 2019 and the spring and summer term 2020, this creates a lagged funding effect 

for the Autumn and Spring terms. 

 

1.2. Funding is not utilised equally across the academic year.  The number of hours for three 

and four year olds are lower in the autumn term and increase to be at their highest in the 

summer term. With the autumn term also being 14 weeks rather than 12 for the other two 

terms, this can lead to surplus funding being available when the lagged effect is adjusted 

for in the June/July of the following year. 

 

1.3. Last year schools forum agreed for this underspend to be used to allocate a one off 

payment to every provider based on their full year claims and adjusted for deprivation. 

Details of this recommendation and decision can be found in the January 2020 schools 

forum report. 

 

1.4. This paper sets out the Early Years context in Gloucestershire and the current and 

potential future impact that Covid-19 has had on the EY market and provides options for 

how best to use the surplus generated by the funding conditions detailed above to ensure 

that we can maintain sufficient childcare provision over the coming year.  

 

2. Current position and challenges of Early Years provision in Gloucestershire 

 

2.1. It is difficult to overstate the importance to children of having the best possible start in life.  

Getting off to a good start is hugely important to their subsequent outcomes as they 

progress through childhood to adolescence and adulthood.  Being able to access good 

quality, local early years provision is critical, particularly for those children from 

disadvantaged backgrounds.  It reduces the gap in development for children and ensures 

all children start school reaching a good level of development. 

 

2.2. Good progress has been made by the Early Years Service over recent years to ensure 

provision is both accessible and of high quality. Good quality EY provision has contributed 

to a significant increase in the percentage of children achieving a good level of 

development or ‘school readiness’, used as a vital baseline measure to understand 

progress as they go through school.  Illustrated below  

 

Page 26



 

 

 
 

 

 

2.3. The fragility of the Early Years infrastructure has always presented a challenge to the 

sufficiency and quality of early education and childcare both locally and nationally.  Rising 

costs and the low hourly childcare rate have led to nurseries struggling to recruit and 

retain qualified staff, and to ensure long term sustainability.  As a result of this, and 

general financial challenges for small child care businesses, part of the EY provider sector 

have been at risk and many have been provided with significant Business support to 

maintain their viability and sustainability. 

 

2.4. The Sutton Trust analysis of polling by the Early Years Alliance of 6,300 early years providers 

finds that at the height of the pandemic in April, two-thirds of early years providers were closed 

to all children, including 79% of pre-schools, 59% of nurseries and 41% of childminders. Of 

those that were closed, two-thirds were expected to be open again by June, with 20% 

expecting to still be shut and 15% uncertain about whether they would be able to 

 

2.5. Gloucestershire’s Childcare Sufficiency and Assessment (2019) which was approved 

by Cabinet on 19 November concluded that there was sufficient provision to meet the 

needs of children requiring childcare, with the greater majority of provision of good or 

outstanding quality.  It also highlighted  the risks to provider sustainability due to a 

combination of cost and funding pressures 

 

 

2.6. An action plan was developed, and has been implemented, to work with local 

providers to ensure the market continues to develop to meet the diverse needs of 

children in Gloucestershire.  However, the outbreak of Covid 19 in March 2020 

presented an unprecedented public health emergency with society forced into 

lockdown and the closure of large elements of the economy.  This included the 

closure of early year’s settings other than for vulnerable children and children of 

critical workers.  As private businesses and charitable enterprises this placed a 

huge financial strain on providers, many of whom were already stretched and 

struggling to sustain childcare businesses due to the marginal funding rates in the 

national offer for 2, 3 and 4yrs age children. 

Page 27



 

 

 

2.7.  For some settings with a high percentage of private, fee paying children there was an 

additional challenge due to the wider impact of the lockdown on employment patterns 

and corresponding need for child care. Some businesses have been able to claim 

grants and most settings that closed temporarily have had access to the Government 

Covid job retention scheme to cover a proportion of their salary payments. 

 

2.8. Following DfE guidance, we have continued to fund any setting that remains closed or 

becomes closed as a result of public health advice. Some settings report reduced 

occupancy as parents have chosen to keep children at home until they return to work 

full time.  This would affect the claims they are able to make for children attending this 

term, but we have advised all settings that we will endeavour to award funding that 

broadly reflects their usual autumn term claims even for those with reduced 

occupancy.  

 

2.9. As at October 2020, 680 of 702 EY settings in the county have reopened, and we are 

continuing to support all open settings, both in respect of advice around Covid safe 

practice and business support. 

 

2.10. In June we circulated a survey to all EY providers to help us to understand the impact 

of the pandemic; their immediate and anticipated challenges over the coming months; 

and the support needed to maintain sufficient, good quality provision across the 

county. The survey covered a number of areas to allow us to risk assess future 

sustainability and the barriers that they envisaged moving forward as we manage and 

recover from the pandemic and its impact.   

 

2.11. All information was collated to identify EY provision that reported cash flow and 

income/expenditure deficit as their primary concern.  A  thorough analysis of these, 

together with further consultation with some, has been developed to identify those 

settings at the highest risk of closure due to financial losses and of those we have 

identified specific provision at risk in areas where we will see a significant impact on 

sufficiency were they to close. 

 

2.12. Of the 260 survey responses received, 168 (35%) cited cash flow/deficits as their 

primary concern.  All income/expenditure figures submitted by providers have been 

checked and verified as far as is possible.  For many settings, EY funding (for the 2, 3 

and 4yrs age offer) is the main source of income and we are able to accurately check 

the amount that each setting has received.   

 

2.13. Only 84 responses submitted deficit amounts (forecast end of year) these ranged from 

 £1,000 - £14,000+, with 23 settings reporting a deficit of over £14,000.  

 

2.14. Stroud and Cotswolds areas have been identified as a significant area of concern, with 

13 settings identifying a significant deficit. This would present a sufficiency issue 

should they close with up to 400 childcare places lost. 

 

2.15. We have only been able to assess the risk factors for those settings that submitted 

their survey response or provided information via PATA and commissioning teams.  

There may be others who have not yet been assessed, or who are not currently 

Page 28



 

 

concerned, about their sustainability that may be impacted in coming months when 

further impact of Covid on demand for childcare places becomes apparent. 

 

 

2.16. An analysis of the financial data submitted enabled us to  grade each on their cash 

flow concerns, however in addition to the cited cash flow and deficits we looked at their 

future sustainability and how this might be achieved, or not. Providers rated Red are 

those that have significant deficits and/or no recovery potential.  Where they predicted 

a possible potential recovery we have graded them Amber. It was deemed that Amber 

was the correct grading however there remains a risk that providers are being unduly 

optimistic and recovery plans may not have the desired impact.  

 

2.17. On further analysis it is interesting to note that the majority of the group graded as 

AMBER are registered childminders. Although in some cases they have been identified 

as having a high percentage deficit there is a willingness to adapt their business model 

to aid recovery - however this does not mean that they may not fall into the RED 

category in the future and in order to ensure that parents have choice we need to 

consider this concern. 

 

2.18. We have also RAG rated them in respect of risk to sufficiency i.e., if the provision 

closed what would the potential risk be to sufficiency in the area? In some 

areas closure would have a major impact on our sufficiency duties and in other areas if 

provision closes it may not affect  our sufficiency duties and we have graded 

accordingly. 

 

2.19. A number of the areas are highlighted as Amber as we currently have sufficient places 

 - of course should a number of providers close in that area it will obviously have a 

greater impact and we do also need to  bear in mind that the survey was not returned 

by all providers.  We have spoken to a number of providers more recently who have 

highlighted concerns however did not (for whatever reason) submit the financial 

survey. 

 

2.20. In total 36 settings were identified as being at high risk of closure with the potential loss 

of over 800 childcare places, closure of at least 12 of these settings would potentially 

cause significant sufficiency challenges if childcare places could not be maintained 

through some means.  

 

3. Funding Options  

 

3.8. Gloucestershire currently has early years DSG carry forward balances available of £1.169 

million.  There are a number of options set out below which could be applied.    

 

1. Allocate all of the funding to providers based on academic year hours – Autumn 19 to 

Summer 20 adjusting for deprivation, as was agreed for the previous year’s 

underspend. 

2. Use the funding to ensure sufficient childcare by preventing the closure of those 

settings most at risk and/or to increase capacity at neighbouring settings 

3. Retain the underspend to off-set overspend on Dedicated Schools Grant  

 

Page 29



 

 

3.9. After consideration of the options available, it is recommended that we: 

 

 Allocate £400,000 to support sufficiency of childcare provision  in areas where settings 

at risk of closure impact on childcare sufficiency.(strategy outlined below) 

 Retain £200,000 of the underspend to provide contingency should any unforeseen 

costs arise. 

 Allocate £560,000  to the remaining providers based on the full academic year hours 

and adjust for deprivation factors (as last year) 

 

4. Rationale 

 

4.1. It is evident from research and consultation with the sector, that Covid 19 has had a 

significant impact on the early year’s economy. There is clear evidence of the impact 

on the sustainability of some local provision that may result in sufficiency challenges in 

some areas of the county. 

4.2. Not only do we have a duty to have available sufficient childcare provision in the county 

but a duty to make every effort to give children the best start in life; access to good 

quality, local childcare is a critical factor in achieving this.  

4.3. The closure of settings will not only present a sufficiency issue in respect of childcare 

places available in the immediate and near future but there will be a longer term 

impact in respect of the loss of experienced, skilled and qualified staff .  The Early 

Years is a sector that already struggles to recruit and maintain a highly skilled 

workforce and any further loss will impact on the quality of provision available in the 

county and the subsequent early years experience and support for the children of 

Gloucestershire.  

4.4.  In order to support the EY sector moving forward it is critical that we consider the 

impact of COVID 19 on the local childcare market and find ways to support providers 

to remain sustainable and to ensure sufficiency childcare places are available in areas 

where settings close: to both support the children of Gloucestershire and enable the 

LA to meet its sufficiency duties.  Areas showing a potential significant fall in childcare 

places due to closure, in particular those in areas of high need should be prioritised for 

support. 

4.5. Were we to allocate funding across all Early Years Providers using the same formula as 

last year, the amounts awarded to settings that have been identified as at high risk of 

closure in areas of sufficiency risk would not be enough to minimise risk. 

In relation to  supporting sufficiency, it is proposed  we implement a strategy to  allocate the 

funding allocated as follows: 

 Commission additional Business support for EY providers to review business plans, 

exploring all options to recoup loss income and to maximise opportunities for 

increased income/recued expenditure over the coming year. 

 Carry out further financial analysis of settings who have been identified as being at risk 

and confirm that the impact of covid is the primary reason for financial concerns and  

that the business is otherwise viable and highly likely to be sustainable in future if 

Page 30



 

 

supported in the short term.  This is particular crucial for those reported forecast  

deficits in excess of £50K 

 Prioritise those settings where analysis reflects a high risk of closure and where loss of 

childcare places due to closure would impact on childcare sufficiency in the area 

 Provide a one off payment to those settings to prevent closure OR  

Invest in neighbouring settings to increase capacity to prevent loss of childcare places 

in the area 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

High Needs Report  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

12th  November 2020 

Type of Decision For information and decision 

Background 
Documents 

High Needs Strategy 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Purpose of Report  To provide an update on the high needs financial forecast for 

2020/21. 

 To update on the key funding drivers for High Needs (EHCPs 

and Permanent Exclusion). 

 To update on the progress of the Joint Additional Needs and 

High Needs Transformation Programme. 

 To consider and receive feedback on proposed changes to the 

funding model for children with SEND.  

Key 
Recommendations 

Forum members are asked to review the current forecast for 2020/21 and 

bring any questions or clarifications required to the Forum meeting. 

Forum members are asked to review the JHNTP highlight report and the 

EHCP engagement pack and bring any questions to the forum meeting. 

Forum members are also ask to consider whether they would like to form a 

sub-group to review and respond to the engagement pack on behalf of the 

Forum. 

Resource 
Implications 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



1. High Needs Forecast 2020-21 

1.1. Detailed below is the September financial forecast for the 2020/21 High Needs budget. 

1.2. Please note that the revised budget is after recoupment adjustments of £8,254.5m by the 

DfE for the funding of places in academies. Also note that the budget figures include the 

£882,000 schools block surplus that was agreed at the June 2020 Schools Forum. 

High Needs Block Budget 

Revised 
budget September 

Forecast 
Variance 
to budget 

Variance 
to Sept SF 

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Alternative provision - places & top ups 5,583.7 5,577.9 5,322.8 -255.1 10.4 

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital Education 1,785.1 1,785.1 1,779.3 -5.8 10.8 

EHCP Costs - College and FE 7,124.9 5,154.9 4,800.0 -354.9 -418.9 

EHCP Costs - Early Years 186.2 186.2 180.7 -5.5 -5.5 

EHCP Costs - Primary 7,839.9 7,839.9 7,463.8 -376.1 -376.1 

EHCP Costs - Secondary 4,013.2 4,013.2 4,259.7 246.5 246.5 

Excluded pupils -100.0 -100.0 -92.1 7.9 0.0 

LA Services and staffing 3,870.9 3,913.9 3,868.4 -45.5 -26.5 

Independent Special Schools 15,115.0 15,115.0 15,115.0 0.0 0.0 

Restorative Practice 200.0 200.0 204.2 4.2 0.2 

Special Centres 696.1 498.4 479.7 -18.7 -18.7 

Special school provision 24,496.9 18,356.9 19,086.4 729.5 729.5 

Support Services 1,270.1 1,286.1 1,226.6 -59.5 13.0 

Virtual School 620.3 620.3 620.3 0.0 9.0 

High Needs Unallocated   0.0 5,503.2 0.0 

 
  

   

 
72,702.3 64,447.8 64,314.8 5,370.2 173.7 

 

1.3. There are a number of movements in the reporting period.  This is primarily due to the 

transition work that took place in September and a subsequent reworking of the mainstream 

and special school forecasts. 

1.4. The forecast for Alternative provision remains broadly in line with the last reporting period at 

£255,100 under budget.  Numbers in alternative provision are lower than normal for the 

time of year due to the partial closure of schools during the summer term.  Included in the 

forecasts are additional costs that were agreed to support Y11 pupils at risk of becoming 

NEET (Not in Employment, Education or Training) through the summer and into September 

– with a 69% success rate so far and a further 21% young people continuing to be 

supported to remain in education and training.   

1.5. The continued underspend in Alternative Provision, is creating pressures on those school 

budgets, as their budgets and staffing are premised on higher occupancy levels. We are 

working with the schools to look at how we can support them by commissioning early 

intervention work.   

1.6. We have seen movement in a number of the EHCP top-up budgets. Transfers into College 

and FE were lower than expected reducing the forecast by £418,900.  Primary top-ups are 

also lower than expected which has reduced the forecast by £376,100.  Top-ups into 

Page 34



secondary provision are higher than expected and as such has been increased by 

£246,500. These refinements have been made after the September transitions, which 

means they should remain relatively stable for the rest of the financial year. 

1.7. Whilst there has been an overall reduction in the top-ups in mainstream and post-16 this 

isn’t a reflection on the levels of need in the system.  As a consequence of the reductions, 

there has been a significant adjustment to the special school forecast, which has seen a 

£729,500 increase.  This is special schools forecast at full capacity for the remainder of the 

academic year. 

1.8. Overall this has seen the forecast move closer to the original budget set in June.  Last 

period we forecast a £306,700 underspend against budget.  This period has seen that 

reduce to forecast underspend against budget of £173,700.   

1.9. We remain cautious about this forecast, as we have sight of a number of complex, high cost 

joint funded placements that could well impact the independent special school forecast in 

the coming months. 

Forum members are asked to review the current forecast for 2020/21 and bring any 

questions or clarifications required to the Forum meeting. 

2. Key Drivers  

2.1. The number of EHCPs has continued to rise as forecast. At the 1st October 2020 there were 

4,185 active EHCPs, which is a rise of 103 since August 2020.  

2.2. Fig.1 shows the trends for the last 9 years broken down by gender. As reported in previous 

meetings we continue to the steady rise in plans that started when changes to the SEND 

code of practice were implemented. 

Fig.1 

 

2.3. As stated above, the rate of permanent exclusion reduced significantly during the first 

phase of the COVID pandemic.  However, since the start of the new academic year 

exclusions have moved back into line with 2019/20. So far this term there have been 5 

permanent exclusions, which exactly the same as the previous year. Fig. 3 shows the data 

for 2020/21 and fig.4, shows the 2019/20 position.  Forum members will note that whilst the 

overall numbers are in line; secondary schools account for all exclusions – there have been 

none in the  primary sector. 

 

Page 35



 

Fig.3 – Permanent exclusion Oct 2020/21 

 

Fig.4 - Permanent exclusion Oct 2019/20 

 

3. Joint Additional Needs and High Needs Transformation Programme 

3.1. Work on the Joint Additional Needs and High Needs Transformation Programme (JHNTP) 

is continuing, although there have inevitably been some delays due to the additional 

workload and pressures created by the COVID-19 pandemic. Attached to this report is the 

latest highlight report which provides an overview of completed and planned activity on 

each of the 6 projects.  

3.2. Good progress has been made in the development of the alternative provision offer.  A 

number of appropriate sites have been identified that can offer dedicated primary provision. 

We are working closely with the headteachers to progress these so that they can be in 

place for the new academic year. 

3.3. Primary and Secondary working groups have been setup up to review the key components 

of the alternative provision.  The approach we are taking for these working groups is 

detailed in Annex A and is underpinned by the key objective of refocussing our 

commissioning of the service to provide proven models of earlier intervention. 

3.4. The EHCP spend redesign project has completed its first key milestone and produced the 

proposed changes to the funding model for SEND.  An engagement exercise will take place 

over the coming weeks to gather feedback from across the system and report at the 

January schools forum.  The engagement pack can be found here. 

Page 36

https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/public/a2lcustomerfeedback/highneeds/bandingfunding?tab=info&standalone=true


3.5. The proposed approach will simplify our approach to funding children with SEND and 

provide access to support outside of the statutory EHCP process.  This is delivered through 

a common banding system that will operate across the mainstream and specialist provision 

and focus on the needs of the child or young person rather than the institution that they are 

educated in.   

3.6. Each of the bands has clear descriptors set against the 4 key areas of SEND need as 

determined by the Code of Practice.  These descriptors are included in the engagement 

pack and are an essential component in ensuring that the banding system can operate 

progressively and effectively.  

3.7. The diagram below shows a comparison between the existing approach the proposed 

approach for next year. 

Current EHCP Funding Model

Band E

Band D

Band C

Band B

Band A

Funding Provision

Specialist Provision

Maintained Special 
School provision

Individually Scored/
Funded EHCP(RAS)

Notional SEND funding 
(NFF)

Universal Offer

Primary/Secondary/
FE provision

Mainstream Provision

Independent Provision

Individually costed  
provision 

Independent Non-
Maintained Special 

Schools

EHCP funding included in 
11k top-up

Alternative 
provision

M
yP

la
n

 a
n

d
 M

yP
la

n
+

Proposed EHCP Funding Model v1.0

Funding Provision

Independent Provision

Individually costed  
provision 

Independent Non-
Maintained Special 

Schools

Band 5

Band 4

Band 3

Band 2

Band 1

Band 0

Banding System

Specialist Provision

Mainstream 
provision

Notional SEND funding 
(NFF)

Universal Offer

Primary/Secondary/
FE provision

Mainstream Offer

EH
C

P

Key Changes/Features
 Extended banding system into mainstream to remove 

individually scored/funded EHCPs and provide a 
continuous banding system through mainstream into 
specialist provision.

 Alignment of the banding system with the graduated 
pathway to enable funding for myplan/myplan+.

EH
C

P

 

Page 37



3.8. Following the engagement process we will undertake a provision mapping exercise 

that will enable us to produce proposed funding levels for each of the bands.  It is 

important to note that this is not an exercise designed to generate direct savings, 

but to enable longer term savings through the use of earlier intervention.  

Forum members are asked to review the JHNTP highlight report and the EHCP 

engagement pack and bring any questions to the forum meeting. 

Forum members are also ask to consider whether they would like to form a sub-group 

to review and respond to the engagement pack on behalf of the Forum. 

 

Page 38



Annex A 

ASSESSMENT OF YOUNG PERSONS NEEDS AND UNDERLYING CAUSE OF BEHAVIOUR 

Analysis/Understanding the issues Developing a solution/output Desired Outcome Proposed Action* 

 What do our current assessment 
processes systems look like?  
Are they effective? Consistent? 

 What is currently done in APS 
and what is done in mainstream 
school?   

 How much variation is there in 
the level and quality of 
assessment undertaken? 

 How does assessment currently 
link to personalised provision 
planning? 

 What research is available re: 
effective assessment?  Is there 
great practice happening 
somewhere that we can look at? 
What is the right time for formal 
assessment to start? 

 Development of assessment 
standards/principles which inform high 
quality and consistent practice across 
the county. 

 Development of a consistent 
assessment system and process for APS 
to operate across the county to 
include: 
o Support for schools to 

undertake/start assessment in 
mainstream. 

o Agreed and consistent 
methodology for assessment. 

o Timing and nature of assessment – 
where and when? 

Clear process to link assessment to 

personalised provision plan 

Consistent ,high quality, child 

centred  model of assessment  

adopted county-wide 

Establish Task & Finish Group 

with representation from AP 

Project  Primary and Secondary 

working groups 

 

To include primary and secondary 

mainstream and AP 

representation 

ALTERNATIVE PROVISION SCHOOL  CURRICULUM AND SERVICE OFFER 

Analysis/Understanding the issues Developing a solution/output Desired Outcome Proposed Action/ Tasks 

 Evaluation of existing alternative 
provision curriculum / offer to 
schools – commissioned and 
commercial. 

 How consistent is current 
curriculum across the three AP 
Schools? What is the quality like 

 What does an effective alternative 
offer need to include: 
o In-reach support for mainstream 

schools  
o Partnership placement – part time 

offer?  Specific programmes of 
support, e.g.  6, 12, 20 week? 

Consistent, high quality model of 

alternative provision ( curriculum 

and offer) which supports inclusion 

in mainstream schools  and 

responds to the needs of  schools 

and CYP who have been or at risk 

Map and present current KS 3 & 4 

AP offer across 3 AP Schools in 

Gloucestershire 

Identify and analyse secondary 

school needs and expectations in 

P
age 39



and where are the gaps (e.g. 
vocational)? 

 What does best practice look 
like – locally and nationally - are 
there good models/ offers 
elsewhere that we could learn 
from? 

 What does research tell us? 

 What else do mainstream 
schools access commercially? 

 What do mainstream schools 
feel they need to support 
inclusion? How could Local 
Inclusion Clusters inform this 
moving forward? 

o PEX placement 

 How could we fund/commission the 
offer – fully funded support/part 
funded? 

 How do we develop the curriculum in 
APS? 

 What should be covered?   
o What should the mix of vocational 

and academic look like? 
o Therapeutic offer? 

of exclusion relation to children and young 

people who have been, or are at 

risk of exclusion. What else are 

they accessing to support 

inclusion? 

Identify latest research to 

support development of revised 

KS 3 & 4 curriculum/offer 

Research and identify models of 

best practice 

Co-produce and implement 

revised, evidence based key 

stage 3 & 4 Alternative Provision 

model, in consultation with 

partners and key stakeholders. 

TRANSITIONS  INTO & OUT OF AP 

Analysis/Understanding the issues Developing a solution/output Desired Outcome Proposed Action 

 How transitions into AP 
currently are managed – what 
works well, are there gaps, how 
is the voice of the child 
considered / heard / recorded? 

 What support is currently 
available to support transition 
back to mainstream? How 
effective is it? 

 What does research tell us 
about effective transition? 

 What the Gloucestershire transition 
model process should  look like? 

 How personalised should the transition 
process be?   

 How will this work with FAP? 
How do we fund and support effective 

transition 

Consistent, effective, high quality 

transition  model and processes 

that  support the best outcomes 

for the child involved 

Establish Task & Finish Group 

with representation from AP 

Project  Primary and Secondary  

working groups 

 

To include primary and secondary 

mainstream and AP 

P
age 40



Are there effective models 

operating in other Local Authorities 

that we can look at? 

representation 

 

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 1 of 8 

 

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT – CSSLT/ High Needs Board 
 

1. 

PROGRAMME  
Joint Additional Needs & 
High Needs 
Transformation 
Programme (JHNTP) 
 

PROGRAMME  
DIRECTOR 
Charlotte Jones 

SROs 
Phil Haslett 
Wendy Williams 
Amanda Henderson 

PROJECT 
MANAGERS 
Usha Parmar 
Allyson McCulloch 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES 
 

JAN  HN Governance 
Structure v1.4.pdf

 

Terms of Reference 
JAN-HN MB - v1.0.pdf

      

PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE 
 

Programme Sponsor Director Children Services Chris Spencer 

Programme Director Director of Education  Charlotte Jones 

SRO Assistant Director Commissioning  Wendy Williams 

SRO Head of Education Strategy & Development Phil Haslett 

SRO/ Chair JAN Board Head of Additional Needs Amanda Henderson 

Programme Manager  JAN HN Transformation Manager Usha Parmar 

Project Manager  Project Manager Usha Parmar 

Project Manager  Project Manager Allyson McCulloch 
 

JAN STRATEGY PRIORITIES  
 

 JAN STRATEGY PRIORITIES 

1.  IDENTIFYING AND MEETING NEEDS 

2.  HOLISTIC PLANNING AND ASSESSMENT 

3.  UNIVERSAL SUPPORT 

4.  PARTNERSHIP WITH FAMILIES 

5.  SERVICE CO-PRODUCTION 

6.  EQUAL EDUCATION ACCESS 

7.  SUPPORTED TRANSITIONS  

8.  EFFECTIVE COMMISSIONING AND RESOURCING 

9.  INFORMED DECISION MAKING  

10.  PREPARATION FOR ADULTHOOD 
 

PROGRAMME  
PURPOSE 
 

The JAN & High Needs Transformation Programme was formed in 2019 to direct 
the implementation of the Joint Additional Needs Strategy JAN Strategy and the 
High Needs Strategy. The programme is established to mitigate the principal risk 
of under performing in the next Local Area SEND inspection where the scoring 
framework is likely to change. The inspection is now expected towards the end of 
2021 due to delays from COVID-19. The premise of the programme is for all 
agencies working with children and young people to respond to the child and 
family’s needs first and not the category of need; providing the right support, in the 
right place, at the right time and to do this collectively, not separately.  
 
The project briefs produced and signed off to date: 
   

Page 43

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/special-educational-needs-and-disability-send/gloucestershires-joint-additional-needs-including-send/
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1223


REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 2 of 8 

 

PROJECTS 
 
 
 
 

 

 Projects Project Manager  RAG Status 

1.  Spend Redesign SEND & 
EHCP 

Usha Parmar   

2.  Integrated Commissioning  Usha Parmar   

3.  SEND Self Assessment 
Gaps and Readiness 

Usha Parmar  Not started 

4.  Primary LINCS Allyson McCulloch   

5.  Secondary LINCS Allyson McCulloch   
6.  Alternative Provision 

Service Redesign 
Allyson McCulloch   

 

2.  
REPORTING 
PERIOD 

Quarterly  Previous quarter  

MANAGEMENT   
SUMMARY 

Programme Overview 
 
The JHNT Programme was developed in March 2020 with six projects identified to 
ensure the child is placed at the centre of any solutions and decisions and that the 
voice of families is represented in any service development through multiagency 
working. The key objective is to make a measurable impact where the difference 
made is tangible and relevant to families and practitioners. 
 
A key driver is the High Needs budget and the significant overspend on the 
statutory services of EHCP and APS.  As such the Spend Redesign project is to 
develop a banding system that facilitates schools/ Early Years to access funding 
much sooner when low level needs are identified; thus reducing the need for 
entering into the costly and resource intensive statutory processes. Likewise the 
Alternative Provision Service is to be redesigned to facilitate early intervention and 
inclusive practices to reduce costs and meet children’s needs without resorting to 
permanent exclusions.   
 
The Integrated Commissioning Forum has been established to provide strategic 
multiagency oversight and intervention for the Local Area by looking at the 
collective evidence and data from partners to build a cohesive picture for the 
county of what the needs are by cohort and by type of education setting. This 
brings together social care, health and education commissioning colleagues for a 
more formal integrated approach.  
 
The Primary and Secondary Local Inclusion Clusters projects will ensure local 
authority services, resources, systems and processes are in place to support local 
partnerships to develop and implement inclusion services and interventions 
through a cluster based model. This was one of the agreed outcomes from the 
High Needs strategy following extensive consultation and is aimed at increasing 
local collaboration and best practice within the school system itself.  
 
The SEND Inspection Readiness project is to implement the gaps and 
weaknesses that have been identified in the SIF Inspection and monitoring visits, 
SEF and ILACS self assessments, and the benchmarking of Ofsted reports of 
similar county profiles as a means to driving improvements with oversight from the 
JAN Management  Board. This will ensure the council and partners are well 
placed at the next inspection. The project spans across education, health, CCG, 
and Adults Services.   
 
Governance 
The governance for the programme has been developed – see above 

Page 44



REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 3 of 8 

 

Governance section. The SEND Inspection Readiness work reports to JCPE 
quarterly, and the CCG/SC/Health elements are to report to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board HWBB by exception. 
 
Budget overview 
The High Needs outturn for 20/21 is currently forecasting to be broadly in line with 
budget. This is a significant step forward from the previous year, where 
forecasting was showing a significant overspend against budget. In the last 
programme highlight report we outlined the importance of continued investment 
from the government. We are pleased to confirm that Gloucestershire has been 
provisionally allocated an additional £6.4m for 2021/22 (subject to census update), 
which is in line with the increase this year (2020/21). Modelling shows that this will 
help to offset some of the rising costs, but does not bridge the gap.  This year on 
year increase would have made the difference if it had been implemented a year 
earlier. Details and modelling were shared with the Schools Forum in September 
and a number of areas are being considered to reduce costs (Diseconomy of 
Scale, Efficiencies in the Advisory Teacher Service and the 1 in 40 model).  
 
Timescale overview  
Two programme plans have been developed, a Pre Covid-19 timeline, and a Post 
Covid-19 timeline. Currently the programme is delayed by one month. The 
importance of the impact of Covid-19 on progress against SEND plans will depend 
upon the length of the current situation and the timing of the next inspection. The 
plans are below in the Critical Path section.  
 
Decisions requested at Oct board – add to agenda 

 Sign off of the Baseline report Prevalence and Emerging Needs Sept20.  

 Sign off of the SEND Inspection Readiness project brief v1.0 

 Sign off in principle of Banded Funding engagement pack 

 Sign off of Coproduction & QA draft ToR v0.3 
 

ACTIVITIES 
COMPLETED 

Spend Redesign SEND & EHCP  

 Project brief and board structure agreed March 2020 

 Project Board Inception Meeting 17 March 20 

 Banded Funded workstream has developed the descriptors and an 
engagement pack for key stakeholders to comment on. The final descriptors 
with the financial model will form part of the cabinet report, with approval 
sought in Spring 2021.  

 Graduated Pathway workstream underway. The scope is to: 
o Understand barriers to using the Graduated Pathway 
o Align the banding and relevant systems and services to the Graduated 

Pathway 
o Set up a monitoring system for tracking recipients of funding 

 EHCP: PeopleToo consultancy has been appointed to support the delivery of 
the EHCP workstream.  

 Communications:  
o Updated key messages after receiving feedback from SR board 

members. 
o Supporting with the engagement pack  

 
Integrated Commissioning 

 Project brief agreed June 2020 

 Integrated Commissioning Forum structure agreed June 2020 

 Integrated Commissioning Forum Inception meeting 3 June 2020. 

 Workstream leads identified 

 The Joint Commissioning workstream is to produce multiagency data and 

Page 45



REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 4 of 8 

 

analysis. As this will take some time to pull together, in the interim the 
workstream is producing a baseline of existing data. A report ‘Estimating 
Prevalence and Emerging Need SEN-July20’ was drafted for initial feedback. 
A final baseline report date-stamped Sept 20 is ready for sign-off by the JAN 
Board.  

 
SEND Inspection Readiness 

 Draft project brief developed and v0.4.4 issued for Health, CCG and Adults 
Services input. 

 SEND Inspection Readiness brief v1.0 is ready for sign off from the JAN 
Board. 

 Dir Education attended JCPE to update, report well received. Report to JCPE 
quarterly. 

 It was agreed that the CDC Audit Tools would be used for the self-assessment 
and additional assessment carried out for the transitions elements.  

 There are 5 stages with stages 1 and 2 underway. This involves populating the 
CDC audit tools. Education and Adult Services have started their self-
assessments. 

 Louise Brill coordinating stages and 2 and Caroline Staite providing the QA of 
the audit self assessment.  

 Meeting held with Keith Vardy Adults Services 1/10/20 

 All areas progressing audits. 
 

Primary and Secondary LINCS  

 Project briefs and Board structure agreed June 2020 

 Joint Project Board Inception meeting held 24.06.20 

 Workstream leads identified 

 Primary: Inclusion Services to Schools developed draft workstream work 
package and implementation plan  

 Secondary: Draft work packages and implementation plans developed 
o Inclusion Services to Schools 
o CASH Local Inclusion Cluster Pilot 
o Stroud Local Inclusion Cluster Pilot 
o Social Finance x 2 - CYP Voices & Exclusion and Team around the 

Locality Cluster (TALC)  

 Initial engagement with Primary Local Inclusion Clusters Committee 14.09.20 
to explain JHNTP/Inclusion Projects. 

 Social Finance ‘Participation & Coproduction’ recruitment of local partner 
completed: Following substantial systems mapping work Social Finance has 
partnered with Prospect Training Services to capture the voices of children 
and young people and parent/carers who have lived experience of exclusions 
within Gloucestershire to ensure we have a depth of understanding on which 
to co-produce the infrastructure and evidence-based interventions.  

 Initial engagement with Secondary Local Inclusion Cluster Leads on plans to 
review services to schools and develop pilots focussed on developing 
Inclusion baseline and tiered model of support 

 
Alternative Provision Service Redesign  

 Project brief and board structure agreed June 2020 

 Joint Project Board Inception meeting 03.06.20 

 Workstream leads identified 

 Workstream work packages and plans x 3 developed and agreed 
o Property & Learning Environments 
o Primary Transformation and Early Intervention 
o Secondary Transformation and Early Intervention 

 Significant progress on identifying options for securing primary AP premises 

Page 46



REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 5 of 8 

 

for Stroud & Cots and Gloucester areas  

 Current AP accommodation report with recommendations developed and 
presented to CS SLT (Quality, suitability & capacity)  

 AP Primary Transformation and Early Intervention workstream underway  

 Draft coproduction plan developed 
 
Coproduction and quality assurance workstream 

 A Coproduction Quality Assurance Group has been established with 
representation from parents, young people and service providers from 
statutory and voluntary sectors to challenge and support the coproduction 
plans and activities from each of the programme workstream. 

 Terms of Reference for the QA group have been drafted for approval by the 
Board. 

 Coproduction training has been jointly commissioned by GCC and the Parent 
Carer Forum to begin 9th October.   

 A slide deck of information on the coproduction workstream and the 
coproduction planning and evidence template has been distributed to all 
workstream leads. 

 
Education Transitions workstream  

 Sarah Poultney has been identified as the lead on this workstream. 

 Work package and scope of the workstream is in progress.  
 
Digital Capacity workstream 

 A workstream lead is yet to be identified and a working group formed. 

 JHNTP ICT digital elements was reviewed as a request at ICT’s Triage 
meeting on 11 August to ensure that ICT are aware of the programme.  Sue 
Rossiter arranged a meeting with the ICF lead for GCC applications service on 
12 August to confirm next steps on how to take the programme forward. 

 
Evaluation workstream  

 Meeting with Social Finance 1.10.20 to discuss approach for scoping out the 
evaluation framework and holding initial conversations with the SROs. 
 

JHNTP Communications Plan 

 A press release was issued to inform residents of the JHNTP 

 A webpage has been set up for JHNTP.  

 Developed key messages for Spend Redesign project and the Banded 
Funding engagement pack. 

 TALC: supported communications for Team Around the Locality pilot. A 
message went to: All schools (about the pilot in general), Education staff 
(about the pilot in general), Schools involved in TALC pilot, Schools 
involved in TALC+ pilot.  

 The weblink is below and there will be a link to this page from schoolsnet, 
staffnet and GHLL) 

https://www.glosfamiliesdirectory.org.uk/kb5/gloucs/glosfamilies/family.page?familychannel=3_2_10 

 
ACTIVITIES 
NEXT PERIOD 

Spend Redesign 

 Meeting with Felicity Deane to discuss cabinet process. Cabinet approval to 
be sought in Jan/Feb 2021.  

 Banded Funding engagement pack issued to stakeholders and engagement 
focus groups/ meetings held.  

 Define EHCP scope and deliverables with PeopleToo. 
 
Integrated Commissioning  

 Preparing for Adulthood Strategy and implementation plan finalised. 

Page 47

https://www.glosfamiliesdirectory.org.uk/kb5/gloucs/glosfamilies/family.page?familychannel=3_2_10


REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 6 of 8 

 

 Road maps cases and scope defined 
 
SEND Inspection Readiness 

 Stages 1 and 2 peer challenge and final conclusion report produced 

 QA assessors report produced.  
 
Primary & Secondary LINCS  

 Mapping of GCC’s Inclusion Services to clarify what and when we offer to 
schools and what might be missing 

 Survey to schools to identify perceptions of which Inclusion Services are 
effective and where there are challenges and/or  gaps (including systems and 
processes)  

 Primary and Secondary LINC engagement to drive projects forward and 
identify challenges  

 Develop workstream work packages: 
o Inclusion Systems & Processes 
o Primary LINCs Pilots 

 Develop Co-production plan 

 Finalise and sign off workstream work packages: 
o Inclusion Services to Schools 
o CASH Local Inclusion Cluster Pilot 
o Stroud Local Inclusion Cluster Pilot 
o Social Finance x 2 - CYP Voices & Exclusion and Team around the 

Locality Cluster (TALC)  

 Develop workstream work package: 
o Inclusion Systems and processes 

 
Alternative Provision 

 Establish AP Secondary working group meetings  

 Refine and send Co-production plan to QA group 

 Agree baseline data  

 Confirm Primary AP property search outcomes and next steps   

 Securing Watermoor / developing programme of works & timelines 

 Ongoing review and proposal for current AP sites 

 Engagement with mainstream primary and secondary schools to identify  
needs and expectations 

 Development of primary and secondary offer including assessment and 
transitions 

 Develop principles of future AP funding model 

 Develop workstream work package x 1  
o Inclusion Systems and Processes  

 
Coproduction and quality assurance  

 Coproduce targeted training for workstream leads and arrange dates to co-
deliver this. 

 Support workstreams to develop their coproduction plans and activities. 

 Work with project areas to identify opportunities for developing a project wide 
coproduction plan (rather than multiple workstreams’ plans) that may be more 
relevant and engaging for parents and young people. 

 
Education Transitions workstream  

 Working group to be set up 
 
Digital Capacity workstream 

 A workstream lead is yet to be identified and a working group formed. 

Page 48



REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 7 of 8 

 

 A meeting arranged on 5th October 2020 where ICT have been invited to 
review the request and confirm next steps. 

 
Evaluation workstream  

 Scoping and further workshops to be held on establishing a baseline for the 
programme. 

 Scope out and develop a proposal for evaluating JHNTP incorporating 
Common Outcomes Framework.  

 Social Finance to submit proposal for Outcomes/ evaluation Framework 
 
JHNTP Communications Plan 

 Produce staffnet page and article in Families Count about JHNTP 

 Finalise engagement documents for Banded Funding workstream.  
 

RISKS  New risk identified this period 
 

Risk 
ref 

Description Mitigation options RAG 

    

    
 

DECISIONS 
REQUIRED 

Decision requested this period from High Needs Board/ Children Services SLT:  
 

 Sign off of the Baseline report Prevalence and Emerging Needs Sept20.  

 Sign off of the SEND Inspection Readiness project brief v1.0 

 Sign off in principle of Banded Funding engagement pack 

 Sign off of Coproduction & QA ToR 

3.  

INTER 
DEPENDENCIES 

 Wider multi-agency work: JCPE, Health, Social Care, Schools, 
Safeguarding board 

 Data Lake Programme 

BUDGET The High Needs outturn for 20/21 is currently forecasting to be in line with 
budget. This is a significant step forward from the previous year, where 
forecasting was showing a significant overspend against budget. Gloucestershire 
has been provisionally allocated an additional £6.4m for 2021/22 (subject to 
census update), which is inline with the increase this year (2020/21).  
 
Modelling shows that this will help to offset some of the rising costs, but does not 
bridge the gap. Details and modelling were shared with the Schools Forum in 
September and a number of areas are being considered to reduce costs 
(Diseconomy of Scale, Efficiencies in the Advisory Teacher Service and the 1 in 
40 model).  

Page 49



REPORT AUTHOR: Usha Parmar  Page 8 of 8 

 

MILESTONES   

Key milestones (based on Pre C19) Date Status 

Project briefs produced and signed off: 

 Spend Redesign  

 Integrated Commissioning  

 SEND Self Assessment Gaps and Readiness 

Feb 20 Done 

Project briefs produced and signed off: 

 Primary LINCS 

 Secondary LINCS 

 Alternative Provision Service Redesign 

June 20 Done 

Integrated Commissioning Forum established June 20 Done 

5x projects initiated July 20 Done 

Inclusion projects x3 planning and inception  Sept 20 Done 

SEND Inspection Readiness brief signed off Oct 20  

SEND Inspection Readiness stages 1 and 2 started Oct 20  

SR-Banded Funding developed for engagement  Oct 20  

Integrated Commissioning Baseline prevalence and 
emerging needs report produced and signed off 

Oct 20  

SEND Inspection Readiness final conclusion and QA 
reports produced 

  

Alternative Provision draft Primary and Secondary 
models scoped out 

Dec 20  

Alternative Provision Primary School sites identified 
agreed and secured  

Jan 21  

SR-Banded Funding Cabinet Approval Feb 21  

Alternative Provision Primary School programme/s of 
work agreed/started 

Mar 21  

Alternative Provision consultation on revised Primary 
and Secondary models completed 

Mar 21  

Alternative Provision Primary School Programme/s 
Works completed /handover of sites 

Aug 21  

Banded Funding Go Live Sept 21  

Alternative Provision revised models implemented  Sept 21  

Alternative Provision implementation of revised models 
monitored and evaluated 

Dec 21  

 

PROGRAMME  
PRODUCTS 

Programme products 

JHN Programme 
Products-July20.docx

 
CRITICAL PATH The current timescale is of 18 months to Autumn 2021. With COVID 19, this is 

forecast to be delayed by up to 8 months to Summer 2022 due to the level of 
engagement required with schools and other stakeholders.  
See the Pre C19 and C19 timelines below for this programme.  
 

JHN Programme 
timeline v1.0.pdf

JHN Programme 
timeline C19 v1.0.pdf

 
 

Page 50


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Action sheet 17 September 2020

	5 Update on the F40 and Covid-19
	Letter 2 to DfE re Covid-19 costs

	6 Early Years Funding
	7 High Needs
	03 Highlight Report-JHNT Programme-Oct20


